
Page 1

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, MAY 3, 2012

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Deb Schorr, Chair
Larry Hudkins, Vice Chair
Bernie Heier
Jane Raybould
Brent Smoyer

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, Lancaster County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on May 2, 2012.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:30 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

1 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE THURSDAY, APRIL 26, 2012
STAFF MEETING

MOTION: Heier moved and Smoyer seconded approval of the April 26, 2012 staff meeting
minutes.  Hudkins, Smoyer and Heier voted aye.  Schorr abstained.  Raybould
was absent.  Motion carried 3-0 with one abstention.

2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

None were stated.

3 PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION PROCESS - Scott Gaines, Chief Deputy
Assessor/Register of Deeds

Scott Gaines, Chief Deputy Assessor/Register of Deeds, noted the hearing on permissive
exemptions will be held on Tuesday, May 22, 2012.  The County Clerk’s office is responsible
for notifying property owners of the hearing date, as well as the Board of Equalization’s action
following the meeting.  Gaines said roughly 900 applications will be reviewed.  He distributed
a handout defining the criteria which must be met for educational, religious, charitable and
cemetery organizations to qualify for the exemption and definitions for each organization (see



Page 2

Exhibit A).  He added the exemption applications will be broken down into four categories:
approved, approved-partial, denied and late filings.  Schorr questioned the appeal process. 
Gaines said the Board of Equalization’s decision can be appealed to the State Tax Equalization
and Review Commission (TERC).  Hudkins questioned whether the applicant will be notified in
advance if a change in exemption status is recommended by the Assessor’s Office.  Norm
Agena, County Assessor/Register of Deeds, said the property owners are not notified of
changes - just the hearing date.  Gaines added the Board may want to visit with the County
Attorney’s office prior to the meeting regarding any conflicts of interest.

4 LANCASTER COUNTY ANNUAL REPORT PREVIEW - Diego Moreno, County
Board Intern

Raybould arrived at 8:42 a.m.

Diego Moreno, County Board Intern, said the annual report is currently in draft form.  He
unveiled a pie chart showing the breakdown of County expenditures by various categories
(general government, public safety, human services, etc.).  He encouraged input from the
County Board and department heads regarding the category names, text and breakdowns. 
Andy Stebbing, County Treasurer, said he would be happy to display the annual report on his
department’s web site.  Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, said once the
report is finalized, a press release will be issued.  Schorr suggested it also be presented at a
Tuesday meeting.  Moreno indicated the report format will allow for easy updates and future
modifications.  The Board commended Moreno on his efforts with the annual report and
thanked him for assisting their office this semester.

ACTION ITEMS

a. Letter of Support for University of Nebraska at Omaha Grant Application to
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

MOTION:  Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize the Chair to sign the letter of
support.  Hudkins, Smoyer, Heier, Raybould and Schorr voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.  (See
Exhibit B.)

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

a. Ecological Committee Appointment (Rachel Simpson)

The consensus was to forward the appointment to a Tuesday County Board meeting.

5 (B) CORRECTIONS QUARTERLY REPORT - Mike Thurber, Corrections
Director

Separate minutes.



Page 3

5 (A) NEW JAIL CONSTRUCTION UPDATE - Mike Thurber, Corrections
Director; Chuck Richter, Sampson Construction; Greg Newport, Clark Enersen
Partners

Progress photos were distributed (see Exhibit C).  Chuck Richter, Sampson Construction,
said there are roughly 80-90 workers onsite daily.  PSA Dewberry will be checking the cells
next week along with representatives from Clark Enersen Partners.  It was noted the cell
vendor will be responsible for any changes if warranted.  Greg Newport, Clark Enersen
Partners, said they did not anticipate many issues to arise as a thorough punch list was
provided.  Richter said machine testing will also be performed next week on all sliding doors. 
Kitchen equipment installation and landscaping are scheduled to begin this month.  He noted
data cables are still being pulled but should be completed by the May 15th deadline.  Schorr
questioned the completion percentage.  Richter said the office and second levels are done
with work currently underway on the ground floor.  

With regard to training, Mike Thurber, Corrections Director, indicated the new staff will be
trained in the current jail, allowing the more experienced staff to begin training at the new
facility.  Upon more substantial completion of the building, he estimated all staff would be
trained within five months.

Smoyer questioned the time line for community tours.  Thurber hoped the building would be
ready for tours by late summer.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

b. Community Mental Health Center ITN Committee Members

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, distributed a list of proposed Committee members
(see Exhibit D) and a letter from J Rock Johnson addressing the draft thank you letter to the
Invitation to Negotiate (ITN) Committee members (see Exhibit E).

With regard to the Committee, Smoyer and Hudkins felt it was appropriate that the
representatives from the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) serve as ex-officio (non-
voting) members.  Raybould disagreed, noting that she would like to see them as full
participants.  Schorr questioned their names.  Eagan said Dean Settle, former CMHC Executive
Director, was going to forward this information to him but had not to date.  Discussion
followed regarding the possibility that different (or rotating) CMHC representatives may need
to participate due to varying degrees of expertise.  Raybould questioned the inclusion of the
County Board representatives’ names on the list.  Eagan said Commissioners Raybould and
Smoyer would be included as voting members.  He added Ron Sorenson, CMHC Executive
Director, will be in charge of facilitating the meetings.



Page 4

MOTION:  Heier moved and Hudkins seconded to include two representatives from the
Community Mental Health Center as ex-officio committee members.  Hudkins, Smoyer, Heier
and Schorr voted aye.  Raybould voted nay.  Motion carried 4-1.

MOTION:  Raybould moved and Hudkins seconded to approve the list of Community Mental
Health Center ITN Committee Members as presented, with the inclusion of County
Commissioners Jane Raybould and Brent Smoyer, and two CMHC representatives.  Hudkins,
Smoyer, Heier, Raybould and Schorr voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

Schorr requested that copies of the HMA report be forwarded to Tony Messineo and Gary
Lorenzen since they are somewhat new to the issue.  Eagan said he will send related materials
to all committee members.

With regard to J Rock Johnson’s letter (Exhibit E) voicing concerns with the wording “peer
supported programming”, “competitive bidding process” and the Committee name “ITN
Review Committee”, the Board’s consensus was to send out the thank you letter as drafted. 
Raybould added that J Rock Johnson’s letter is a good reminder about the sensitivity
surrounding this issue but felt the letter was general in nature and that some of the concerns
will be addressed by the Committee.  Eagan said he used the words “competitive bidding
process” since that is what is included in State Statute.  He added the Board could revise the
Committee name if so desired.  No alternate names were offered.

6 CONTRACT WITH LIZ NEELEY FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF APPOINTED
COUNCIL RECOMMENDATIONS - Dennis Keefe, Public Defender; Randall
Goyette, Lancaster County Indigent Defense Advisory Committee Chair

Dennis Keefe, Public Defender, appeared and voiced his support of moving forward with the
implementation of the Indigent Defense Advisory Committee recommendations.  He noted the
contract amount proposed by Liz Neeley ($23,400) is a maximum total spread over 18
months.

Randall Goyette, Lancaster County Indigent Defense Advisory Committee Chair, discussed the 
work which could be performed by the Committee and that which would be done by Neeley. 
He stressed Neeley’s assistance would be necessary to accomplish the outlined goals.   

Keefe said another issue would be to pursue a legislative proposal changing the definition of
“custodian.”  He estimated doing so could save the County $125,000 per year.  Goyette added
that not all recommendations would need to be addressed at this time.  An option would be to
take a look at those which are the most calculated to provide efficient services.

Raybould questioned projected cost savings and benchmarks.  Keefe indicated the analysis of
data will save money but it may be difficult to meet certain benchmarks.  Schorr suggested
Neeley provide updates to the County Board at 6, 12 and 18 months.



Page 5

With regard to cost, Dennis Meyer, County Budget Director, said this expense has not been
budgeted this year but could be added to the list for an upcoming discussion.  He also pointed
out the Board will have a lot of decisions to make with regard to funding priorities for fiscal
year 2012-13.  If approved, he recommended it come out of the Justice-Miscellaneous budget.

Raybould felt it would be helpful if Neeley could provide projected cost savings for each
recommendation.  Keefe indicated this could probably be done.  Schorr said this information
could be submitted with the budget.  Keefe voiced his concern with waiting until August to
start legislative proposals pertaining to changing the definition of “custodian.”  It was noted
some of this legwork can begin now.  Eagan said this issue is already included on the Board’s
legislative list for next year.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

d. Letter to Supreme Court on Proposed Guidelines for Guardians ad Litem in
Juvenile Court

Keefe said he will forward a draft to the County Board before the deadline.  He indicated the
proposed changes would significantly increase costs and caseloads and prevent Legal Aid of
Nebraska’s ability to provide services.

7 INFORMATION SERVICES UPDATE - Steve Henderson, Chief Information
Officer

Steve Henderson, Chief Information Officer, distributed an Information Services (IS) Update
(see Exhibit F) and a breakdown of FY2012-13 customer billing (see Exhibit G).  He
provided a brief overview of Exhibit F noting that his budget will be reduced by two full-time
employees due to the mainframe transfer to the State.  Additionally, a third position will be
reclassified to a lower pay grade following an upcoming retirement.

With regard to the billing information, Henderson noted the increase to the County
Commissioners’ budget was due to the addition of GIS (Geographic Information System).  

Raybould questioned the potential savings associated with VOIP (Voice Over Internet
Protocol).  Henderson said this savings would be realized by a reduction in costs payable to
Windstream, not Information Services.  He added after the initial investment to convert to
VOIP, annual costs would decrease significantly.  Meyer noted that currently the County has
only approved VOIP for the new jail.  Future discussions will need to occur regarding the
inclusion of other County departments.

In response to Schorr’s inquiry regarding the decrease to the County Treasurer’s budget,
Henderson said IS originally proposed a budget of $326,000 based on normal projections. 
Due to budget concerns, this amount was negotiated to $208,000 with the understanding that 
the Treasurer would repay the remaining balance over the next two years.



Page 6

Raybould said she was floored with how expensive IS is compared to the private sector. 
Henderson respectfully disagreed and said he would be happy to review the rate structure
with anyone interested in the billing details.

Heier questioned the relationship between the number of employees per department versus
the cost.  Henderson indicated that the larger budget figures typically mean more IS business
is being used by that department.

Schorr said she would like the GIS amount removed from the County Commissioners’ budget
for better transparency.

Smoyer asked about the savings realized from moving the mainframe to the State.  Henderson
said it would be modest - perhaps around $90,000. 

8 AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY EVENTS CENTER PHASE III - Alan Wood,
Lancaster County Agricultural Society Attorney; Ron Snover, Lancaster Event
Center Managing Director; Joanne Kissel, Clark Enersen Partners; Dr. Ernie Goss,
Goss & Associates; Tom Junge, Iowa-Nebraska Equipment Dealers Association
Show Manager; Scott Keene, Ameritas Investment Corporation

The following handouts were distributed: Phase III Improvements (see Exhibit H); a study
on the Economic Impact of the Lancaster Event Center Phase 3: 2012 and Beyond (see
Exhibit I); and a letter and attachments from Andrew Goodman, President and CEO, Iowa-
Nebraska Equipment Dealers Association (see Exhibit J).

Schorr declared a conflict of interest as her husband is a law partner of Alan Wood.  She 
indicated she would be facilitating the discussion but not participating in it.

An overview of Exhibit H was provided.  It was noted Phase III was part of the original master
plan.  It includes an ag coliseum with 2500+ permanent seats, a new pavilion (Pavilion 5),
upgrades to existing buildings (lighting, power, concessions), site improvements (parking,
campground, landscaping), city-road improvements, furnishings and equipment, and other
associated costs.  The total estimated cost of the project is $43,837,218.

Dr. Ernie Goss, Goss & Associates, noted that agriculture is driving the local economy and,
since interest rates are at or near record lows, now is a good time to issue bonds for the
project.  He provided examples related to the return on the investment, as well as the impact
to the local taxpayer.  Goss said if commercial development (hotel/retail) is included on the
northwest corner of the site, the annual rate of return for Lincoln and Lancaster County would
be approximately 5.6%.  The cost to the Lancaster County taxpayer with a $100,000 home
would be roughly -$4.20 if additional events were booked at the Event Center and the
commercial development were included.  Raybould questioned the reduction.  Goss said it
would be reflected through additional local tax collections (i.e., sales and lodging tax).



Page 7

Hudkins said he would be willing to consider an investment if it will continue in the future.  In
response to Hudkins’ inquiry, Tom Junge, Iowa-Nebraska Equipment Dealers Association
(INEDA) Show Manager, said their show at the Event Center has seen dramatic growth since
2007.  In fact, it is one of the top three indoor agricultural shows in the country.  He noted a
facility expansion would put the Event Center “on the map” with regard to attracting even
more vendors and events as Nebraska is in the heart of agriculture.  Raybould inquired if other
states are looking to expand similar venues.  Junge said Iowa recently renovated but the
INEDA quickly outgrew that site.  Snover added the Event Center has an advantage in that it
is not land-locked, unlike other facilities in the Midwest.

Scott Keene, Ameritas Investment Corporation, said from a borrowing perspective, things are
looking good as interest rates are still low.  He noted buyers are a little hesitant when it comes
to locking in 30-year rates, thus, long-term rates could increase slightly over time.  He was
comfortable with the initial financing (20, 25 or 30-year term).  Additional options could also
be considered as the process unfolds. 

Heier questioned the current bond balance.  Alan Wood, Agricultural Society Attorney, said the
balance is $8.1 million.  Keene noted these bonds are not callable until December, 2014,
therefore, it does not make economic sense to refinance them at this time.  He added this
could be an option down the road if refunding the bonds saves the County money.   

Raybould questioned the promotional strategy and time line.  Wood said they will be meeting
with the Journal Star editorial board today to discuss the project.  They also plan to have a
community information process between now and July prior to asking the County Board for
formal consideration of the proposal.  Raybould asked if the issue would be on the November
ballot.  Wood noted the Lancaster County Fairgrounds Joint Public Agency (JPA) has the
authority to issue bonds without a vote of the people.  Keene added that unlike other political
subdivisions, there is not a financial benefit to having a public vote.  The only thing allowable
to pledge is the 3.5¢ capital levy of the Agricultural Society which was lent to the JPA. 
Raybould asked if Phase III could be divided into additional phases due to the cost.  Snover
said the original master plan was designed in phases and now is the time for the final one.

Smoyer was generally supportive of the concept but had concerns related to the struggling
economy and the impact the additional tax would have on property owners.  He agreed that
breaking Phase III into smaller pieces may be more palatable.

Heier indicated he and Commissioner Hudkins were on the County Board when the original
plan was approved.  He said they took a lot of heat for supporting the Event Center but, over
the years, this had subsided.   

Wood indicated they would be back before the County Board in July following the community
information process.



Page 8

9 PROPERTY TAX SYSTEM - Andy Stebbing, County Treasurer; Terry Adams,
Chief Deputy County Treasurer; Steve Henderson, Chief Information Officer;
Terry Lowe, Information Services Project Manager

Andy Stebbing, County Treasurer, said bond money in the amount of $500,000 was set aside
years ago for the purpose of upgrading the Treasurer’s property tax system.  He felt now is
the time to pursue this upgrade which must also integrate with the Assessor’s property
database.  Bids were received ranging anywhere from $800,000 to $1.3 million.  Stebbing said
he then discussed the project with Information Services (IS).  They estimated they could build
the system for roughly $250,000.  The system would not be on the mainframe.  Stebbing said
additional savings could be realized through a $50,000 reduction in his department’s annual IS
budget, as well as a $25,000 reduction in maintenance fees paid for the current system.  

Raybould thought the $800,000 bid seemed high.  Stebbing said he did not think he could find
a system for $500,000.   Terry Adams, Chief Deputy County Treasurer, felt this is the best
solution as most counties are paying a lot more for similar systems.  

In response to Schorr’s inquiry, Dennis Meyer said the savings (approximately $250,000) could
be used to pay off the bonds.

When asked if he had any concerns, Norm Agena, County Assessor/Register of Deeds, said
the project does not affect his office as property information will be exchanged through an
interface.

Heier questioned if the system could eventually be sold to others.  Terry Lowe, Information
Services Project Manager, said yes.  Eagan suggested a contract be written addressing the
project specifics.

MOTION:  Heier moved and Hudkins seconded to proceed with a contract between the
County and the City for the development of a new property tax system for the County
Treasurer. 

With regard to a timeframe, Stebbing said he hoped to have it done by November.  Henderson
said IS resources will be immediately devoted to accomplish this deadline.  Brittany Behrens,
Deputy County Attorney, said once she receives the specific details from the Treasurer the
contract should be finalized quickly.

ROLL CALL:  Hudkins, Smoyer, Heier, Raybould and Schorr voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

10 ACTION ITEMS

a. Letter of Support for University of Nebraska at Omaha Grant Application to
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention



Page 9

Item 10a was moved forward on the agenda.

11 CONSENT ITEMS

No items were listed.

12 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

a. Ecological Committee Appointment (Rachel Simpson)
b. Community Mental Health Center ITN Committee Members

Items 12a and 12b were moved forward on the agenda.

c. Management Team Agenda Items (May 10, 2012)

Due to a lack of agenda items, the consensus was to cancel the meeting.

d. Letter to Supreme Court on Proposed Guidelines for Guardians ad Litem in
Juvenile Court

Item 12d was moved forward on the agenda.

e. Transfer of County Property to Malcolm Fire Department

Eagan said the item was referred to the County Attorney and County Engineer.

13 PENDING

No items were listed.

14 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

a. General Assistance Monitoring Committee - Raybould/Hudkins

Hudkins said it was noted that transferring the Community Mental Health Center could have
an $400,000-$600,000 impact on the general assistance budget.  Discussion took place
regarding  the 97% budget request.  Raybould added rent for Health & Human Services
space, the Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department contract and burial rates will be
reviewed.  She said additional appropriations of $175,000-$200,000 will likely be needed this
budget year.

b. Chamber Coffee - Smoyer/Raybould 

Smoyer said the group discussed the federal budget and taxation issues.



Page 10

EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

Hudkins announced that Eagan was re-elected to the People’s Choice Federal Credit Union
Board of Directors at its annual meeting.  It was noted other County representatives on that
Board include Sheriff Terry Wagner and Mike Thurber, Corrections Director.

Raybould said the Grid Iron event will be held this week.  A tribute is planned to outgoing
County Commissioner, Bernie Heier.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION:  Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:45 a.m. 
Hudkins, Smoyer, Heier, Raybould and Schorr voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

__________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk




































































































































